
 1

FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, JULY 31, 2008 
                           
                        
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT:      
 Walter L. Alcorn, At-Large      
 Frank A. de la Fe, Hunter Mill District                                 
 Earl L. Flanagan, Mount Vernon District                  
 James R. Hart, Commissioner At-Large                                   
 Kenneth A. Lawrence, Providence District                             
    
COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 Jay P. Donahue, Dranesville District    
 Rodney L. Lusk, Lee District 
 Timothy J. Sargeant, At-Large 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF PRESENT:  
 Sara Robin Hardy, Assistant Director, Planning Commission Office 
 Linda B. Rodeffer, Clerk to the Planning Commission 
  
COUNTY STAFF PRESENT: 
 Michael Knapp, Director, Urban Forest Management Division, DPWES 
 Noel Kaplan, Senior Environmental Planner, Planning Division, Department of Planning 
  and Zoning 
 Kambiz Agazi, Environmental Coordinator, Office of the County Executive 
   
// 
 
Chairman James R. Hart called the meeting to order at 7:14 p.m., in the Board Conference 
Room, 12000 Government Center Parkway, Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Flanagan MOVED THAT THE ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES OF 
July 10, 2008, BE APPROVED. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
// 
 
Chairman Hart announced that the committee would be briefed on the proposed Tree Ordinance 
amendments. 
 
// 
 
Michael Knapp, Urban Forestry Management Division, Department of Public Works and 
Environmental Services, reviewed the following handouts: 



 2

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE       July 31, 2008 
 
 

 Chapter 122, Tree Conservation Ordinance – proposed addition to the Fairfax County 
Code.  Contains centralized authority from the State enabling legislation passed this year.  
Language expanded to facilitate review and inspection concepts that need to be embodied in the 
County Code as opposed to the Public Facilities Manual (PFM). 
 

 Chapter 112, Zoning Ordinance, Article 13 – proposed amendment to remove Part 4 and 
add a placeholder statement that the language formerly located in Part 4, Tree Cover 
Requirements, had been changed to Tree Conservation and moved to Chapter 122.  Part 3 
amended to reduce planting densities in screening yards in order to ensure the long-term health 
and effectiveness of screening plants.   
 
Mr. Knapp said the County had become over planted since the Ordinance had been originally 
adopted in 1976, with the consequence of insect infestations and disease epidemics.  
 

 PFM Amendments, Tree Conservation. 
  

 State enabling legislation. 
 
Mr. Knapp said the above four documents were the major components of the amendment 
package and then reviewed three additional documents:   

 
 Proposed Tree Conservation Amendments to Chapter 101 of the Subdivision Ordinance – 

legal mechanism to require subdivision plans to address tree cover requirements. 
 

 Proposed Tree Conservation Amendments to Chapter 104, Erosion and Sedimentation 
Control – legal mechanism to require infill plans that are part of the building permit to address 
tree cover.   
 

 Proposed changes to Chapter 120 – proposed title change from Tree Conservation 
Ordinance to Heritage, Specimen, Memorial and Street Tree Ordinance, because the new 
Chapter 122 is entitled Tree Conservation Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Knapp said all of the documents would be included in the staff report and were currently 
under review by the Office of the County Attorney.  (Copies of the documents are in the date 
file.) 
 
Mr. Knapp provided an overview of the enabling authority for tree conservation, the public 
hearing schedule and the goals of adopting a local ordinance.  (A copy of his presentation is in 
the date file.) 
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Alcorn, Mr. Knapp said credit would not be given 
for street trees located in a right-of-way although a waiver for up to 25 percent of the 
requirements could be granted and offsite tree canopy could be provided. 
 
 



 3

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE       July 31, 2008 
 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner de la Fe, Mr. Knapp said credit could be given for 
street trees on private streets.   
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Flanagan, Mr. Knapp said the Virginia 
Department of Transportation did not have street tree standards. 
 
In response to questions from Chairman Hart and Commissioner de la Fe, Mr. Knapp said the  
the amendments included incentives to provide the right type of tree in the right place, with a 
focus on the use of native trees.  He said however, cultivar trees could be planted if native trees 
would not be able to thrive under urban conditions. 
 
Mr. Knapp said in order to get the legislation passed, a mechanism had to be created to quantify 
the impact on a site-by-site basis for the amount of tree preservation required.  Therefore, he 
explained that a tree preservation target had been derived at which was more of an expectation 
than a requirement and allowed for deviations. 
 
Mr. Knapp responded to questions from Commissioners about tree cover requirements in various 
zoning districts. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Alcorn, Mr. Knapp said although discussions had 
taken place with the County Attorney’s Office about including grandfathering provisions in the 
amendments, no decision had been made yet. 
 
Mr. Knapp responded to a question from Commissioner Flanagan about the correlation between 
the future goal of achieving a 45 percent tree cover and the amendment requirement for 30 
percent.   
 
Mr. Knapp responded to a question from Chairman Hart about the effect of the Emerald Ash 
Borer on tree conservation. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner de la Fe, Mr. Knapp said it was possible that trees 
could intentionally be cut down before a development plan was submitted and that there was no 
authority to require a permit for removing individual trees.  Responding to another question from 
Commissioner de la Fe, Mr. Knapp said although it had been discussed at the State level, there 
was no provision in the amendment for requiring a certain amount of tree cover after 
development.   
 
Responding to a question from Chairman Hart, Mr. Knapp said tree conservation was an 
agreement between the County and a developer and removal of trees by a homeowner was a 
continuing problem.  He said tree proffers could be enforced but there was no recourse for by-
right development. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence asked about the possibility of obtaining federal grants for public 
outreach and education to both children and adults.  Mr. Knapp said that grants might be 
available through the U. S. Department of Agriculture’s Forest Service.  Commissioner  



 4

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE       July 31, 2008 
 
 
Lawrence said he would pursue this matter further.  Commissioner de la Fe said the Park 
Authority and the Northern Virginia Soil and Conservation District would be good resources for 
educational material.   
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Flanagan, Mr. Knapp said the County had no 
regulatory authority governing the placement of satellite dishes.  He said the satellite industry 
would have to be targeted to assist in tree preservation. 
 
Continuing his presentation, Mr. Knapp reviewed the tree preservation feature of the legislation, 
industry participation, provisions for tree banking and tree funds, incentives for tree planting, 
improved health and structural standards, and the value of trees. 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Flanagan, Mr. Knapp said that the PFM contained 
a provision for tree inventories onsite within certain distances of proposed limits of clearing and 
grading. 
 
Mr. Knapp said the Engineering Standards Review Committee had endorsed the proposed PFM 
amendments today and the Tree Commission had formed a subcommittee to review the 
amendments. 
 
Chairman Hart suggested comments/questions be submitted to Mr. Knapp and circulated to 
committee members.  He said the Planning Commission’s public hearing was scheduled for 
September 24, 2008 and the Board of Supervisors’ public hearing was scheduled for October 20, 
2008. 
 
// 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
J
 
ames R. Hart, Chairman 

 
An audio recording of this meeting is available in the Planning Commission Office, 12000 
Government Center Parkway, Suite 330, Fairfax, Virginia 22035.     
  
 Minutes by:  Linda B. Rodeffer 
  
 Approved:  September 18, 2008      
 
 
        _____________________________ 

     Linda B. Rodeffer, Clerk 
     Fairfax County Planning Commission 

 
 
 
 


